
 CITY OF HAYS COMMISSION MEETING 
THURSDAY, MARCH 12, 2015 – 6:30 P.M.  

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Call to order by Chairperson.   
 

2. PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING FORT HAYS STATE UNIVERSITY 
 

3. MINUTES: Consider approval of the minutes from the regular meeting held on     
February 26, 2015. (PAGE 1) 

 
4. CITIZEN COMMENTS:  (non-agenda items). 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA:  (Items to be approved by the Commission in one motion, unless 

objections are raised).   
 

 Mayoral Appointment Recommendation: CARE Council (PAGE 11) 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

(No business to review) 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

6. 46TH STREET, SECOND ADDITION, PHASE 2 – AWARD OF BID: Consider authorizing 
the City Manager to enter into a contract with JCorp for the construction of street, water, 
and sanitary sewer improvements within the 46th Street Second Addition, Phase 2, to be 
funded out of Water/Sewer Capital. (PAGE 13) 
 

7. CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT – 8TH ADDENDUM: Consider 
approving the Eighth Addendum to the Employment Agreement between the City of Hays 
and Toby R. Dougherty. (PAGE 21) 
 

8. REPORT OF THE CITY MANAGER  
 
9. COMMISSION INQUIRIES AND COMMENTS   
 
10. EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF REQUIRED) 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 

ANY PERSON WITH A DISABILITY NEEDING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO ATTEND THIS MEETING 
SHOULD CONTACT THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING 
TIME.  EVERY ATTEMPT WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE ANY REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE. 



 



 

MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 

THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 

HELD ON FEBRUARY 26, 2015 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN:  The Governing Body of the City of Hays, 

Kansas met in regular session on Thursday, February 26, 2015 at 6:30 p.m. 

  Roll Call:  Present: Henry Schwaller IV 

Eber Phelps 

Shaun Musil 

          Ron Mellick 

     Kent Steward 

Chairperson Schwaller declared that a quorum was present and called the 

meeting to order. 

2.  MINUTES:  There were no corrections or additions to the minutes of the 

regular session held on February 12, 2015; the minutes stand approved as 

presented. 

3. FINANCIAL STATEMENT: Finance Director Kim Rupp presented the January 

2015 Financial Report and stated that month-to-date general fund sales tax 

collections were at $624,116 which is another nice increase, a total of $32,230 as 

compared to last year.  

The Finance/City Clerk’s Office invested $6,450,000 of maturing or 

renewing certificates with a weighted average interest rate of .22%. The portfolio 

of certificates of deposit on January 31, 2015 totaled $56,250,000 with a 

weighted average interest rate of .25% as compared to .24% a year ago. The 

total balance of the Money Market account on January 31, 2015 was $1,000,000 

with a current yield of .20%. Total investments are up $1,450,000 when 

compared to this time last year. 

Ron Mellick moved, Shaun Musil seconded, that the Financial Statement 

for the month of January 2015 be approved. 

1



Vote:  Ayes:  Henry Schwaller IV 

Eber Phelps 

Shaun Musil 

          Ron Mellick 

      Kent Steward 

4.  CITIZEN COMMENTS:  There were no comments. 

5.  CONSENT AGENDA:  

A. Eber Phelps moved, Ron Mellick seconded, that the following mayoral 

appointments be approved: 

Hays Area Planning Commission  

Darrell Hamlin – unexpired term to expire April 30, 2017  

Robert Readle – unexpired term to expire April 30, 2017  

Vote:  Ayes:  Henry Schwaller IV 

Eber Phelps 

Shaun Musil 

          Ron Mellick 

      Kent Steward 

B. Chairperson Schwaller presented the following mayoral appointments for 

consideration, which will be presented at the March 12, 2015 Commission 

meeting for approval. 

Sister Cities Advisory Board 

Carol Solko-Olliff – three-year term to expire January 1, 2018 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 

6. LEVEE IMPROVEMENTS – AWARD OF BID:  Steven Walters, Stormwater 

Specialist, presented to the Commission information regarding the Levee 

Improvement Project. 

2



Wilson & Co. was hired in 2012 to perform a safety inspection of the Hays 

levee system.  In their inspection, they found several items needing to be 

addressed, as detailed during Wilson & Co.’s presentation to the City 

Commission at the May 2, 2013 Work Session. In September 2013, an 

engineering service agreement was entered into with Wilson & Co. to provide 

surveying, engineering design, and construction documents for repairs or 

improvements to most of the identified problems. 

The levee is also part of a federal insurance program called Public Law 

84-99.  Participation in this program is at no direct cost to the City of Hays and 

allows for federal reimbursement should the levee be damaged during a flood 

event.  Repairs to damages caused by floods are made to the system with 80% 

of the costs picked up by the federal government.  To maintain eligibility in this 

program, the levee is periodically inspected by the U.S. Army Corps of 

Engineers.  Hays’ latest rating is “minimally acceptable,” the lowest rating in 

which a levee sponsor can remain in the program.  Items such as poor sod 

cover, tree encroachment, minor erosion, silt deposits, and erosion near 

drainages have led to this rating. 

The Levee Improvement Project includes the removal of 74 trees and 

associated roots varying in size from 4” to 96”, repair of five outfall structures, 

replacement of storm sewer pipe, repair/rebuilding of the levee embankment east 

of Main Street, re-grading of Montgomery Ditch, and constructing a 6” concrete 

cap on the levee.  The 6” concrete cap is an extension of the Kansas Department 

of Transportation hike and bike trail project. 

Four bids were received with the apparent low responsive bidder being     

J Corp of Hays, Kansas. 

Shaun Musil moved, Eber Phelps seconded, to authorize the City 

Manager to execute the contract with J Corp in the amount of $486,645 to be 

funded from the Stormwater Utility Capital Projects line item. 

 

 

 

3



Vote:  Ayes:  Henry Schwaller IV 

Eber Phelps 

Shaun Musil 

          Ron Mellick 

      Kent Steward 

7. LEVEE REPAIRS CONSTRUCTION PHASE ENGINEERING SERVICES 

AGREEMENT:  City staff does not have the expertise or equipment to perform 

soil compaction testing, and with the multitude of ongoing and projected projects 

this summer, existing staff will not be available to adequately inspect this project. 

Due to the nature of levee construction it is imperative that work be of the highest 

quality as the levee is only as strong as its weakest part. Therefore, City staff 

issued a request for proposals for construction phase testing and observation 

services to eight construction engineering firms to ensure construction quality.   

Proposals were opened on January 21, 2015 from six construction 

engineering firms. The proposals varied greatly from full-time testing and 

observation to part-time testing and observation and the proposed prices 

reflected those differing views ranging from $21,000 to $58,000.   

City staff is asking the Commissioners to enter an agreement with Penco 

Engineering, P.A. of Plainville, Kansas in the amount of $21,000 for Construction 

Phase Engineering Services.   

Shaun Musil moved, Ron Mellick seconded, to authorize the City Manager 

to execute the agreement with Penco Engineering in the amount of $21,000 to be 

funded from the Stormwater Utility Capital Projects line item. 

Vote:  Ayes:  Henry Schwaller IV 

Eber Phelps 

Shaun Musil 

          Ron Mellick 

      Kent Steward 

8. ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 53 – STORMWATER MANAGEMENT: 

ID Creech, Director of Public Works, updated the Commissioners on necessary 

changes to the Code of Ordinances regarding stormwater management. These 

4



changes will bring the City of Hays into compliance with Federal Clean Water Act 

requirements for post construction stormwater controls; will impose requirements 

on residential developments for stormwater management; and will change the 

current standards for storm sewer infrastructure, moving away from water in 

pipes to overland flows in new developments. Additionally, non-stormwater 

discharges causing problems with unpaved surfaces are added to the list of 

prohibited discharges. 

Eber Phelps moved, Shaun Musil seconded, to approve Ordinance No. 

3896 amending Chapter 53 of the City of Hays, Kansas, Municipal Code 

regarding Stormwater Management. 

Vote:  Ayes:  Henry Schwaller IV 

Eber Phelps 

Shaun Musil 

          Ron Mellick 

      Kent Steward 

9. 13TH STREET RECONSTRUCTION (MAIN TO MILNER) – AWARD OF BID: 

In May, staff brought forward concepts and alternatives for the reconstruction of 

13th Street from Main to Milner.  Subsequently, the City Commission approved a 

contract with Professional Engineering Consultants (PEC) of Wichita for design 

engineering services.  Bids were opened on January 28, 2015 with APAC, 

Kansas, Inc. being the low bidder.  There were several bid options, and staff 

recommends awarding a bid to APAC for Alternate A in the amount of 

$2,057,145.65 and Add Alternate 2, brick crosswalks for an additional cost of 

$10,564.40 resulting in a total construction cost of $2,067,710.05.  Funding 

would come from various sources which include Capital Projects, City 

Commission Reserve, Water/Sewer Capital, and the Stormwater Fund.   

 Kent Steward moved, Shaun Musil seconded, to authorize the City 

Manager to enter the contract with APAC, Kansas, Inc. for Alternate A and Add 

Alternate 1, 2, 3, and 4 in the amount of $2,469,765.55.  Plus, authorize the 

following transfers to Capital Projects Fund: $93,734.68 from Water Sewer 

5



Capital, $449,219.54 from Capital Projects – Flood Control (Stormwater 

Reserve), and the remainder $426,811.32 from Commission Capital Reserve.   

 Commissioner Steward stated if we go with what City staff recommends 

we would spend less money, but he feels that improving 13th Street which is one 

of the main access points to downtown, it should last for 50, 60, 70 years. He 

does not feel it is extravagant to do it well so that we continue to enhance the 

character of our downtown. 

 Commissioner Musil asked what the useful life of brick pavers is verses 

concrete. 

 John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works responded that his 

experience is that brick streets last longer, but are more expensive initially. 

 Chairperson Schwaller stated he opposes this; he does favor the full 

project with concrete pavers, but the Commission Reserves that we have, are 

needed for several other things. He would like to fix the street appropriately and 

make sure that we have money to fix the streets in every neighborhood, not just 

this neighborhood, and also safeguard the savings we have for the future. 

 Commissioner Mellick opposed the add alternates; he stated we have had 

to say no to a lot of things in the past 15 years to get to pay as you go and does 

not want to jeopardize the Commission Financial Policy and we must live within 

our budget. 

Vote:  Ayes:  Kent Steward 

No: Henry Schwaller IV 

Eber Phelps 

Shaun Musil 

         Ron Mellick 

 Ron Mellick moved, Henry Schwaller IV seconded, to authorize the City 

Manager to enter the contract with APAC, Kansas, Inc. for Alternate A and Add 

Alternate 2 in the amount of $2,067,710.05.  Plus, authorize the following 

transfers to Capital Projects Fund:  $93,734.68 from Water Sewer Capital, 

$449,219.54 from Capital Projects – Flood Control (Stormwater Reserve), and 

$119,755.82 from Commission Capital Reserve.    

6



Vote:  Ayes:  Henry Schwaller IV 

Eber Phelps 

          Ron Mellick 

    No: Shaun Musil 

Kent Steward 

10. 2015 STREET MAINTENANCE PROGRAM – AWARD OF BID:  Bids have 

been received for 2015 Street Maintenance Projects.  Those projects include the 

chip seal of approximately 5.6 miles of asphalt streets, poly patch of asphalt 

streets in various locations, reconstruction of 12th Street east of Canterbury, and 

the repair of brick streets on Ash from 14th to 17th Street.  The amount of work 

proposed totals $459,178 awarded to 4 different contractors.  The work would be 

accomplished at various locations and various times throughout the year. 

Awarding the $459,178, allocating $105,000 for in-house work, and 

$20,000 for the Sidewalk Rebate Program, will leave $73,821.86 in the project 

line item and $50,000 in the contingency line of the Special Highway Budget.  It 

is appropriate to keep approximately 10% ($45K) for unforeseens, which allows 

approximately $75,000 to be used for additional work or other projects. 

Kent Steward moved, Shaun Musil seconded, to authorize the City 

Manager to enter contracts for construction as follows, all to be funded out of 

Special Highway: 

 B&H Paving in the amount of $208,740 for Chip Seal 

 J Corp in the amount of $129,780 for the Reconstruction of 12th Street 

 Sweeney Pavement Maintenance in the amount of $49,425 for Polypatch 

 Stripe and Seal in the amount of $71,233 for Curb and Brick Repair 

Vote:  Ayes:  Henry Schwaller IV 

Eber Phelps 

Shaun Musil 

          Ron Mellick 

      Kent Steward 

11. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT POLICY – CID POLICY:  After the 

submission, discussion, and approval of a Community Improvement District (CID) 

7



request by the owners of the Hays Mall, the City Commission asked that 

discussion of the CID Policy be placed on a future work session to determine if 

further restrictions or requirements should be incorporated into the policy. 

Currently, the CID Policy is part of the City’s overall Economic Development 

Policy. The CID Policy states that CIDs are to be used for reimbursable 

expenses in the amount of $250,000 or greater in order to promote economic 

development and tourism within the City. When discussing the CID Policy, it was 

assumed that any applicant wishing to utilize a CID would be incorporating those 

funds into a much larger project. With the application by the Mall owners, this 

was not the case. 

The Commission previously requested comparisons to peer cities in 

regard to whether or not they place any further restrictions on CID use, such as 

the required developer investment the City Commission was considering. After 

discussing the information brought forward, the Commission, at its work session 

on February 17th, requested that language be added to the CID section of the 

Economic Development Policy noting that the applicant must detail the proposed 

method and amount of financing, including any public financial participation, and 

that the applicant must participate in the project in an amount that is at least 25 

percent of the total project cost. The revised policy is now being brought forward 

for formal approval. 

Henry Schwaller IV moved, Ron Mellick seconded, to approve the 

amendment to Section 9, Subsection H, of the CID section of the Economic 

Development Policy to read Financial and Fiscal Impact:  

The applicant must detail the proposed method and amount of financing, 

including any public financial participation requested. The applicant must 

financially participate in the project in an amount that is at least 25 percent of the 

total project cost. 

 Commissioner Steward is against CIDs, stating we should do away with 

these altogether and that they don’t accomplish the desired goal. 

8



 Chairperson Schwaller stated he believes any developer that comes to us 

must have an investment in it so the taxpayer is not paying 100% of the 

development. 

Vote:  Ayes:  Henry Schwaller IV 

Eber Phelps 

Shaun Musil 

          Ron Mellick 

     No: Kent Steward 

12. RESOLUTION OPPOSING SENATE BILL 171:  City Manager Toby 

Dougherty stated Senate Bill 171 was passed by the Senate today so now it is on 

to the House of Representatives. 

Eber Phelps moved, Ron Mellick seconded, to approve Resolution No. 

2015-004 opposing the Kansas State Legislature’s consideration of making 

municipal elections partisan and moving to the fall of even numbered years. 

Commissioner Steward stated he can see advantages and disadvantages 

to this bill and as an expression of his disinterest in this he will be abstaining. 

Vote:  Ayes:  Henry Schwaller IV 

Eber Phelps 

          Ron Mellick 

No: Shaun Musil 

       Abstain: Kent Steward 

13. PROGRESS REPORT:  Assistant City Manager Paul Briseno presented a 

monthly report of city-related activities, services and programs. 

14.  REPORT OF THE CITY MANAGER: The City Manager had no additional 

items to report. 

15. COMMISSION INQUIRIES AND COMMENTS:  Commissioner Mellick 

commented that there will be state wrestling and basketball tournaments in Hays 

this weekend. 

 Commissioner Musil suggested that citizens be patient if we do get the 

snow that is predicted this weekend. 

9



 Commissioner Phelps commented that Jason Riegel, Water Conservation 

Specialist, has done a great job in the schools educating students on water 

conservation. 

 Chairperson Schwaller thanked ID Creech, Director of Public Works and 

Jamie Salter, Public Works Administrative Assistant, for their work in putting 

together the Airport terminal building ribbon cutting.           

 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:33 p.m. 

 

 

Submitted by: _______________________________________________  

    Brenda Kitchen – City Clerk 

 

 

 

10



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 5  MEETING DATE: 3-12-15 
 

 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Mayoral Appointment Recommendation 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Receive Mayor Schwaller’s proposed appointment to the CARE Council. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The following proposed appointment will be presented for approval at the March 26, 2015 City Commission 
meeting. 
 
CARE Council  
 
Kayla Lonnon – 2-year term to expire 3-1-17 (3rd term) 
  
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Mayor Schwaller 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Applications Received for this Board (1) 

11



 
CITY OF HAYS 

APPLICATION FOR SERVING ON A CITY BOARD OR COMMITTEE 
 
 
Email: kaylal@sunflowerbank.com  
 
Date: 3/4/2015  
 
Name: Kayla Lonnon  
 
Address: 1111 Downing Ave Hays, KS 67601  
 
Day Time Phone Number: 785-623-6024  
 
Evening Phone Number: 785-259-3209  
 
Place of Employment: Sunflower Bank NA  
 
How long have you been a Resident of Hays: 14 years  
 
Name of Board(s) you are interested in serving on: Care Council  
 
How much time could you devote per month: 5-10 hours  
 
Are you related to anyone who is currently serving on a Board/Committee?: No  
 
If Yes, Explain:  
 
Briefly describe why you are interested in serving on a Board/Committee for the City of 
Hays: I have served on the Care Council for United Way for the past 4 years and really 
enjoy getting involved in the community. Being a part of the Care Council has allowed 
me to see how different organizations in Hays operate and what they have to offer.  
 
Please list any groups or activities that you participate in, or have previously participated 
in, that demonstrates your involvement in the community: HAYP, YouthFriends, Big 
Brothers Big Sisters, Soroptimist International of Hays, Ellis County Extension Office, 
Red Cross, Care Council, and a graduate of Leadership Hays.  
 

12



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 MEETING DATE: 3-12-15 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
  
46th Street, Second Addition, Phase 2 – Award of Bid 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with J Corp in the amount of $399,453.20 
for construction of street, water, and sanitary sewer improvements within the 46th Street 
Second Addition, Phase 2, with the City Share of $32,883.00 to be funded out of 
Water/Sewer Capital. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
Western Plains Service Corp. has petitioned the City for Street, Storm Sewer, Water, and 
Sanitary Sewer Improvements to an area containing 18 lots along Coolidge Ct. and Adams 
Dr. within the 46th St. 2nd Addition.  A resolution authorizing those improvements was 
approved by the City Commission in January.  Bids were opened on February 18, 2015 for 
the construction of the improvements, with J Corp being the low bidder at $399,453.20.  
Pavement was bid with the option of concrete or asphalt, with concrete being the lowest cost 
option.  The City share for oversizing Sanitary Sewer is $32,883.00 to be funded out of 
Water/Sewer Capital and the remaining costs to be paid by the developer and assessments 
to the special benefit district. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends awarding the contract to the low bidders as presented. 
  
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff memo 
Location Map  
Bid Tabulation 
 

13



 

 

Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works  
 
Work Session:   March 5, 2015  
 
Subject:  46th Street, Second Addition, Phase 2 – Award of Bid 
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
  I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 

Summary 
Western Plains Service Corp. has petitioned the City for Street, Storm Sewer, Water, and 
Sanitary Sewer Improvements to an area containing 18 lots adjacent to West 46th St. 
within the 46th St. 2nd Addition for the lots along Coolidge Ct. and Adams Dr.  A 
resolution authorizing those improvements was approved by the City Commission in 
January.  Bids were opened on February 18, 2015 for the construction of the 
improvements, with J Corp being the low bidder at $399,453.20.  Pavement was bid with 
options for concrete or asphalt, with concrete being the lowest cost option.  The City 
share for oversizing Sanitary Sewer is $32,883.00 to be funded out of Water/Sewer 
Capital and the remaining costs to be paid by the developer and assessments to the 
special benefit district. 
 
Staff recommends entering into a contract with the low bidder, J Corp. 
 

Background  
This project is a continuation of an existing development that follows the plan that has 
been set forth and constructed in various phases over the last 20 years.  It is the final 
phase for the entire north of 41st Street and west of Hall Street that has been developed by 
Western Plains Service Corporation. 
 

Discussion 
Bids for this project were opened on February 18, 2015 with bids coming from three (3) 
bidders: APAC, J Corp, and Stripe & Seal.  Bids were structured to allow for either 
asphalt or concrete pavement.  J Corp submitted the low bid in the amount of 
$399,452.20 using concrete pavement.  J Corp did not submit an asphalt option, and 
neither did Stripe & Seal.  APAC submitted bids for both asphalt and concrete; however 
both options from APAC were higher than the concrete bid from J Corp.  The low bid 
was below the engineer’s estimate. The tabulation of bids is attached. 
 
Throughout the development of this area, the sanitary sewer running along Smoky Hill 
Drive and now being extended to serve Adams Drive and eventually north of I-70 has 
been oversized to 12” in diameter and has been kept deep to allow for its use as a major 

14



 

 

sanitary sewer trunk main for future development elsewhere.  Per the City’s Development 
Policy, the cost to oversize the sanitary sewer is to be funded by the City-at-Large 
through the Water/Sewer Capital Fund.  Based on the low bid prices, that amount would 
be $32,883.00. 
 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 

 

Financial Consideration 
The developer is financing the improvements through the establishment of a special 
benefit district.  After subtracting $32,883.00 for the City’s share of oversizing the 
sanitary sewer and adding in $26,000 for engineering cost, 30% of the remaining costs 
($117,771) will be paid by the developer and 70% ($274,800) assessed to the 18 lots in 
the benefit district.  The special assessment per lot is currently estimated to be 
approximately $16,000 per lot. 
 
The $32,883 cost for oversizing the sanitary sewer is to be funded out of Water/Sewer 
Capital. 
 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options: 

 Award contract as recommended by staff 
 Provide alternate direction to City Staff 
 Do nothing 

 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends entering a contract with the low bidder as presented. 
 

Action Requested 
Authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with J Corp in the amount of 
$399,453.20 for construction of street, water, and sanitary sewer improvements within 
the 46th Street Second Addition, Phase 2, with the City Share of $32,883.00 to be funded 
out of Water/Sewer Capital. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Location Maps  
Bid Tabulation 
 

15



46th St. 2nd Addition

16

jrohr
Polygon

jrohr
Callout
Subject Property



17



BID TABULATION BIDS RECEIVED February 18, 2015, AT 3:00 PM  

CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS

46TH STREET SECOND ADDITION, PHASE 2, SAN. SEWER, WATER & STREET IMP.  

CITY OF HAYS PROJECT NO. 2014-31 DATE: 2-18-15  

APAC-KANSAS, INC. J CORP STRIPE AND SEAL

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE P.O. BOX 190 1707 E. 1OTH P.O. BOX 747

HAYS, KS  67601 HAYS, KS 67601 HAYS, KS 67601

   

ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT UNIT UNIT

NO. DESCRIPTION & UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL

SANITARY SEWER

1 Mobilization 1.0 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $54,000.00 $54,000.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

2 Traffic Control 1.0 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $3,200.00 $3,200.00 $500.00 $500.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

3 Construction Staking 1.0 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $600.00 $600.00 $600.00 $600.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

17 Trenching 14'-16' 199.0 LF $20.00 $3,980.00 $29.00 $5,771.00 $18.00 $3,582.00 $20.00 $3,980.00

18 Trenching 16'-18' 103.0 LF $24.00 $2,472.00 $34.00 $3,502.00 $18.00 $1,854.00 $25.00 $2,575.00

19 Trenching 24'-26' 492.2 LF $60.00 $29,532.00 $83.00 $40,852.60 $35.00 $17,227.00 $40.00 $19,688.00

20 Connect to Existing Sewer Line 2.0 EA $3,000.00 $6,000.00 $3,150.00 $6,300.00 $1,850.00 $3,700.00 $2,500.00 $5,000.00

21 Remove Existing Cleanout 1.0 EA $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $3,100.00 $3,100.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

22 Type I Manhole 3.0 EA $3,400.00 $10,200.00 $4,800.00 $14,400.00 $3,000.00 $9,000.00 $3,000.00 $9,000.00

23 Extra Depth Type I Manhole 51.4 LF $325.00 $16,705.00 $400.00 $20,560.00 $200.00 $10,280.00 $400.00 $20,560.00

24 Sanitary Sewer Cleanout, 12" 1.0 EA $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $1,150.00 $1,150.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

25 4" Sanitary Sewer 988.0 LF $60.00 $59,280.00 $90.00 $88,920.00 $35.00 $34,580.00 $45.00 $44,460.00

26 8" Sanitary sewer 302.0 LF $24.00 $7,248.00 $27.00 $8,154.00 $24.00 $7,248.00 $20.00 $6,040.00

27 12" Sanitary sewer 492.2 LF $32.00 $15,750.40 $58.50 $28,793.70 $40.00 $19,688.00 $30.00 $14,766.00

28 8"x 4" Wye 2.0 EA $200.00 $400.00 $198.00 $396.00 $170.00 $340.00 $150.00 $300.00

29 8"x 4" Combination Tee/Wye 7.0 EA $200.00 $1,400.00 $105.00 $735.00 $195.00 $1,365.00 $150.00 $1,050.00

30 12"x 4" Wye 1.0 EA $250.00 $250.00 $450.00 $450.00 $390.00 $390.00 $200.00 $200.00

31 12"x 4" Combination Tee/Wye 8.0 EA $250.00 $2,000.00 $250.00 $2,000.00 $420.00 $3,360.00 $2,000.00 $16,000.00

32 4" Cap (Sanitary Sewer) 18.0 EA $100.00 $1,800.00 $35.00 $630.00 $45.00 $810.00 $50.00 $900.00

33 Silt Fence Barrier 2,200.0 LF $4.00 $8,800.00 $2.25 $4,950.00 $3.20 $7,040.00 $3.40 $7,480.00

TOTAL SANITARY SEWER IMPR. $190,317.40 $290,814.30 $132,714.00 $168,999.00

City Share
Extra Depth Trenching (24'-26' vs. 16'-18') 291.0 LF $36.00 $10,476.00 $49.00 $14,259.00 $17.00 $4,947.00 $15.00 $4,365.00

Trenching 24'-26' (Additional) 201.2 LF $60.00 $12,072.00 $83.00 $16,699.60 $35.00 $7,042.00 $40.00 $8,048.00

Oversize Sanitary Sewer (12" vs. 8") 291.0 LF $8.00 $2,328.00 $31.50 $9,166.50 $16.00 $4,656.00 $10.00 $2,910.00

12" Sanitary Sewer (Additional) 201.2 LF $32.00 $6,438.40 $58.50 $11,770.20 $40.00 $8,048.00 $30.00 $6,036.00

Type I Manhole (Additional) 1.0 EA $3,400.00 $3,400.00 $4,800.00 $4,800.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

Extra Depth Type I Manhole (Additional) 20.2 LF $325.00 $6,565.00 $400.00 $8,080.00 $200.00 $4,040.00 $400.00 $8,080.00

Sanitary Sewer Cleanout, 12" 1.0 EA $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $1,150.00 $1,150.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

TOTAL $43,279.40 $68,275.30 $32,883.00 $33,439.00

18



BID TABULATION (CONT.) APAC-KANSAS, INC. J CORP STRIPE AND SEAL

 ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE P.O. BOX 190 1707 E. 1OTH P.O. BOX 747

46TH STREET SECOND ADDITION, PHASE 2 HAYS, KS  67601 HAYS, KS 67601 HAYS, KS 67601

ITEM QUANTITY UNIT UNIT UNIT UNIT

NO. DESCRIPTION & UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL PRICE TOTAL

WATER

1 Mobilization 1.0 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $14,600.00 $14,600.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

2 Traffic Control 1.0 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

3 Construction Staking 1.0 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $600.00 $600.00 $600.00 $600.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

34 6" Water Line (C900 PVC) 656.8 LF $25.00 $16,420.00 $18.00 $11,822.40 $35.00 $22,988.00 $25.00 $16,420.00

35 6" x 8" Reducer 1.0 EA $300.00 $300.00 $210.00 $210.00 $220.00 $220.00 $250.00 $250.00

36 6" Cap (Water) 2.0 EA $300.00 $600.00 $120.00 $240.00 $100.00 $200.00 $200.00 $400.00

37 Connect to Existing Fitting 2.0 EA $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,300.00 $2,600.00 $750.00 $1,500.00 $750.00 $1,500.00

38 2" Flush Valve 2.0 EA $2,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,750.00 $3,500.00 $1,650.00 $3,300.00 $1,300.00 $2,600.00

39 Meter Set 18.0 EA $1,200.00 $21,600.00 $1,350.00 $24,300.00 $1,150.00 $20,700.00 $900.00 $16,200.00

40 Service Connection 18.0 EA $300.00 $5,400.00 $170.00 $3,060.00 $250.00 $4,500.00 $100.00 $1,800.00

41 Service Saddle 18.0 EA $300.00 $5,400.00 $160.00 $2,880.00 $175.00 $3,150.00 $190.00 $3,420.00

42 Service Line (1") 824.0 LF $12.00 $9,888.00 $7.40 $6,097.60 $13.50 $11,124.00 $6.00 $4,944.00

TOTAL WATER IMPROVEMENTS $88,608.00 $71,710.00 $73,782.00 $54,034.00

 STREETS

1 Mobilization 1.0 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $34,000.00 $34,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

2 Traffic Control 1.0 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $500.00 $500.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00

3 Construction Staking 1.0 LS $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

4 Pavement Removal 52.0 SY $20.00 $1,040.00 $6.00 $312.00 $30.00 $1,560.00 $15.00 $780.00

5 Saw Cut 56.0 LF $12.00 $672.00 $9.00 $504.00 $7.00 $392.00 $6.00 $336.00

6 Seeding & Mulching 4.4 AC $1,500.00 $6,600.00 $1,032.00 $4,540.80 $1,000.00 $4,400.00 $1,200.00 $5,280.00

7 Common Excavation 220.0 CY $12.00 $2,640.00 $3.00 $660.00 $8.00 $1,760.00 $8.00 $1,760.00

8 Embankment 1,590.0 CY $12.00 $19,080.00 $2.00 $3,180.00 $5.00 $7,950.00 $4.80 $7,632.00

9 Contractor Furnished Borrow 1,920.0 CY $20.00 $38,400.00 $7.90 $15,168.00 $10.00 $19,200.00 $10.00 $19,200.00

10 Fly Ash 183.0 Tons $85.00 $15,555.00 $65.00 $11,895.00 $80.00 $14,640.00 $80.00 $14,640.00

11 Water (Fly Ash) 73.0 Mgal $16.00 $1,168.00 $35.00 $2,555.00 $12.00 $876.00 $12.00 $876.00

12 Manipulation (Fly Ash) 3,100.0 SY $5.00 $15,500.00 $5.50 $17,050.00 $3.00 $9,300.00 $5.00 $15,500.00

16 Layback Curb & Gutter (AE) 1,444.0 LF $24.00 $34,656.00 $29.00 $41,876.00 $21.50 $31,046.00 $18.00 $25,992.00

 TOTAL STREET IMPROVEMENTS $158,311.00 $136,540.80 $99,424.00 $106,996.00

  

 ALTERNATE NO. 1

15 Concrete Pavement, 6" (AE) 2,461.4 SY $52.00 $127,992.80 $44.05 $108,424.67 $38.00 $93,533.20 $37.00 $91,071.80

 TOTAL ALTERNATE NO. 1 $127,992.80 $108,424.67 $93,533.20 $91,071.80

 

 ALTERNATE NO. 2

13 Bituminous Surface Course, 2" 2,461.4 SF $16.00 $39,382.40 $12.00 $29,536.80 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

14 Bituminous Base Course, 4" 2,461.4 SF $26.00 $63,996.40 $24.00 $59,073.60 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL ALTERNATE NO. 2  $103,378.80 $88,610.40 No Bid No Bid

 TOTAL PROJECT w/ALT 1 Concrete  $565,229.20 $607,489.77 $399,453.20 $421,100.80

TOTAL PROJECT w/ALT 2 Asphalt  $540,615.20 $587,675.50 No Bid No Bid

19



 

20



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

                     COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 7                MEETING DATE: 3-12-15 
 
 
 
TOPIC: 
 
Eighth Addendum to the City Manager’s Employment Agreement 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approve the Eighth Addendum to City Manager Toby Dougherty’s Employment Agreement 
dated June 28, 2007, as presented. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The City Commission, upon the completion of a performance evaluation of the City Manager, 
has requested that the attached Eighth Addendum be attached to the City Manager’s existing 
Employment Agreement. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION: 
 
Mayor Schwaller 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Eighth Addendum to Employment Agreement 
 
 
 
            
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

21



EIGHTH ADDENDUM TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 

NOW ON this 12th day of March, 2015, this Eighth Addendum to Employment Agreement, 

between the City of Hays, Kansas, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as "Employer", 

and Toby R. Dougherty, hereinafter referred to as "Employee", is as follows: 

WHEREAS, the parties have heretofore entered into and executed an Employment 

Agreement dated June 28, 2007, providing for the employment of Employee as the City Manager of 

the City of Hays, Kansas, an Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated July 26, 2007, a Second 

Addendum to Employment Agreement, dated December 13, 2007, a Third Addendum to 

Employment Agreement, dated February 14, 2008, a Fourth Addendum to Employment Agreement, 

dated February 26, 2009, a Fifth Addendum to Employment Agreement dated March 8, 2012, a 

Sixth Addendum to Employment Agreement dated March 28, 2013, and a Seventh Addendum to 

Employment Agreement dated March 13, 2014, as provided by law, and; 

WHEREAS, the aforesaid Agreement and its Addendums have certain provisions regarding 

compensation and contributions to deferred compensation which the parties now desire to amend, 

and; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants hereinafter 

contained, the parties agree that "Section 5. Salary" of the aforesaid Employment Agreement of the 

parties is amended and modified to provide for an increase of 2.0% of the base salary of the year 

2014 as a bonus to be paid in equal amounts on each payroll in 2015, effective as of December 21, 

2014, which is the beginning for the first payroll period in 2015. 

The parties further agree and stipulate that the aforesaid Employment Agreement of the 

parties and its Addendums shall continue in full force and effect in regards to all other provisions not 

otherwise amended by this Eighth Addendum to Employment Agreement. 

22



EIGHTH ADDENDUM TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
Page 2 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Hays has caused this Eighth Addendum to 

Employment Agreement, to be signed and executed on its behalf by its Mayor, and duly attested by 

its City Clerk, and the Employee has signed and executed this Eighth Addendum to Employment 

Agreement, both in duplicate, the day and year first above written. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Hays has caused this Eighth Addendum to 

Employment Agreement, to be signed and executed on its behalf by its Mayor, and duly attested by 

its City Clerk, and the Employee has signed and executed this Eighth Addendum to Employment 

Agreement, both in duplicate, the day and year first above written. 

EMPLOYER: 

CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 
 
 
 

By__________________________________ 
    HENRY SCHWALLER IV 
    Mayor 

 
EMPLOYEE: 

 
 
 

__________________________________ 
TOBY R. DOUGHERTY 
City Manager 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
BRENDA KITCHEN 
City Clerk  

23


	3-12-15 City Commission  Meeting
	2-26-15 City Commission Meeting Minutes
	Mayoral Appointment Recommendation
	46th Street, Second Addition, Phase 2 - Award of Bid
	City Manager Employment Agreement Addendum



